



SENATE JOURNAL

STATE OF ILLINOIS

NINETY-EIGHTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY

123RD LEGISLATIVE DAY

MONDAY, MAY 19, 2014

12:22 O'CLOCK P.M.

SENATE
Daily Journal Index
123rd Legislative Day

Action	Page(s)
Deadline established.....	5
Introduction of Senate Bills No'd. 3660-3661.....	6
Joint Action Motion(s) Filed.....	19
Legislative Measure(s) Filed.....	4
Message from the House.....	6, 12, 14, 16, 18
Message from the President.....	4
Presentation of Senate Joint Resolution No. 76.....	5
Presentation of Senate Joint Resolution No. 77.....	20
Report from Assignments Committee.....	39, 40
Report from Standing Committee(s).....	6

Bill Number	Legislative Action	Page(s)
SJR 0076	Committee on Assignments.....	5
SJR 0077	Committee on Assignments.....	20
SR 0639	Adopted, as amended.....	40
SR 1070	Adopted, as amended.....	42
SR 1088	Adopted, as amended.....	42
SR 1114	Adopted.....	42
SR 1145	Adopted.....	43
HB 3638	Second Reading.....	22
HB 3939	Third Reading.....	27
HB 4090	Third Reading.....	27
HB 4157	Third Reading.....	28
HB 4284	Third Reading.....	29
HB 4327	Third Reading.....	28
HB 4395	Third Reading.....	37
HB 4442	Second Reading.....	21
HB 4462	Third Reading.....	38
HB 4525	Third Reading.....	37
HB 4600	Second Reading.....	21
HB 4636	Third Reading.....	29
HB 4694	Second Reading.....	19
HB 4745	Third Reading.....	30
HB 4783	Third Reading.....	30
HB 4790	Second Reading.....	20
HB 4910	Third Reading.....	31
HB 4916	Third Reading.....	31
HB 5082	Second Reading.....	19
HB 5085	Third Reading.....	32
HB 5326	Third Reading.....	32
HB 5354	Second Reading.....	21
HB 5412	Third Reading.....	33
HB 5523	Third Reading.....	33
HB 5606	Second Reading.....	19
HB 5613	Second Reading.....	19
HB 5688	Second Reading.....	20
HB 5785	Third Reading.....	34
HB 5815	Third Reading.....	34
HB 5828	Third Reading.....	35
HB 5853	Third Reading.....	36

HB 5922	Third Reading	38
HB 5925	Third Reading	36
HJR 0056	Adopted	43
HJR 0068	Adopted	43

The Senate met pursuant to adjournment.
Senator Ira I. Silverstein, Chicago, Illinois, presiding.
Prayer by Chance Newingham, Life International Ministries.
Senator Jacobs led the Senate in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Senator Hunter moved that reading and approval of the Journal of Thursday, May 15, 2014, be postponed, pending arrival of the printed Journal.
The motion prevailed.

LEGISLATIVE MEASURES FILED

The following Committee amendments to the House Bills listed below have been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Senate Committee Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 1152
Senate Committee Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 3662
Senate Committee Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 3937

The following Floor amendments to the House Bills listed below have been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 1457
Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 3232
Senate Floor Amendment No. 3 to House Bill 3638
Senate Floor Amendment No. 3 to House Bill 4056
Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 4442
Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 4486
Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 4811
Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 4956
Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 4983
Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 5354
Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 5397
Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 5410
Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 5622
Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 5689
Senate Floor Amendment No. 3 to House Bill 5701

The following Floor amendment to the Senate Bill listed below has been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Senate Floor Amendment No. 4 to Senate Bill 2015

MESSAGE FROM THE PRESIDENT

OFFICE OF THE SENATE PRESIDENT STATE OF ILLINOIS

JOHN J. CULLERTON
SENATE PRESIDENT

327 STATE CAPITOL
SPRINGFIELD, IL 62706
217-782-2728

May 16, 2014

Mr. Tim Anderson
Secretary of the Senate
Room 403 State House
Springfield, IL 62706

[May 19, 2014]

Dear Mr. Secretary:

Pursuant to the provisions of Senate Rule 2-10, I hereby establish May 23rd, 2014 as the 3rd Reading deadline for the following Senate Bills:

12,16,68,118,123,124,126,127,200,216,233,234,277,278,279,280,350,351,352,508,583, 645,651,1011,1012,1051,1052, and 2015.

In addition, I hereby establish May 23rd, 2014 as the Committee deadline for the following House Bills:

802,1152,1256,3662,3798,3937,4483,4496,4561,4734,5716,5812, and 5911.

Sincerely,
s/John J. Cullerton
John J. Cullerton
Senate President

cc: Senate Republican Leader Christine Radogno

PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION

Senator McCann offered the following Senate Joint Resolution, which was referred to the Committee on Assignments:

SENATE JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 76

WHEREAS, It is highly fitting that the Illinois General Assembly pays honor and respect to individuals who gave their lives in the line of duty; and

WHEREAS, Sheriff John Lammy's last watch occurred on September 25, 1881; he was killed in a shoot-out near Fox Creek Bridge on Route 96 in between Kampsville and Mozier; and

WHEREAS, Marshal Charles B. Rose's last watch occurred on October 14, 1911; he was killed in Kampsville while attempting to arrest William Carter and was fatally stabbed by, Elmer Carter, the suspects brother; and

WHEREAS, Illinois State Trooper George L. Fredrickson's last watch occurred on September 1, 1947; he died in his attempt to save a motorcyclist on Labor Day, 2 miles west of Grafton near the Brussels Illinois State Ferry; and

WHEREAS, Chief Deputy Sheriff Brian K. Gibbons's last watch was on July 11, 2006 after having his squad car struck by a drunk driver 2 days prior; and

WHEREAS, These fallen heroes deserve to be remembered by the State of Illinois for making the ultimate sacrifice; therefore, be it

RESOLVED, BY THE SENATE OF THE NINETY-EIGHTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES CONCURRING HEREIN, that we recognize Sheriff John Lammy, Marshal Charles B. Rose, Illinois State Trooper George L. Frederickson, and Chief Deputy Sheriff Brian K. Gibbons; and be it further

RESOLVED, That we designate Route 96 between Kampsville and Mozier as the "Sheriff John Lammy Memorial Highway"; and be it further

[May 19, 2014]

RESOLVED, That we designate the Illinois State Kampsville Ferry Landing, on both the Kampsville and Eldred sides of the river, as the "Kampsville Marshal Charles B. Rose Memorial Landing"; and be it further

RESOLVED, That we designate a stretch of Route 100 from Grafton to Pere Marquette State Park as the "Illinois State Trooper George L. Fredrickson Memorial Highway"; and be it further

RESOLVED, That we recognize the naming of Route 100 as it passes through Calhoun County as the "Chief Deputy Brian K Gibbons Memorial Highway"; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Illinois Department of Transportation is requested to erect at suitable locations, consistent with State and federal regulations, appropriate plaques or signs giving notice of the these names.

REPORT FROM STANDING COMMITTEE

Senator Landek, Chairperson of the Committee on State Government and Veterans Affairs, to which was referred **House Bills Numbered 4483, 4734 and 5911**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills do pass.

Under the rules, the bills were ordered to a second reading.

INTRODUCTION OF BILLS

SENATE BILL NO. 3660. Introduced by Senator Haine, a bill for AN ACT concerning regulation.

The bill was taken up, read by title a first time, ordered printed and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

SENATE BILL NO. 3661. Introduced by Senator McCann, a bill for AN ACT concerning appropriations.

The bill was taken up, read by title a first time, ordered printed and referred to the Committee on Assignments.

MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE

A message from the House by

Mr. Mapes, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 219

A bill for AN ACT concerning State government.

Together with the following amendment which is attached, in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

House Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL NO. 219

Passed the House, as amended, May 16, 2014.

TIMOTHY D. MAPES, Clerk of the House

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 219

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 219 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Illinois Lottery Law is amended by changing Sections 2, 9.1, and 20 and by adding Section 21.9 as follows:

(20 ILCS 1605/2) (from Ch. 120, par. 1152)

Sec. 2. This Act is enacted to implement and establish within the State a lottery to be conducted by the State through the Department. The entire net proceeds of the Lottery are to be used for the support of the State's Common School Fund, except as provided in subsection (o) of Section 9.1 and Sections 21.2, 21.5,

[May 19, 2014]

21.6, 21.7, ~~and 21.8~~ and 21.9. The General Assembly finds that it is in the public interest for the Department to conduct the functions of the Lottery with the assistance of a private manager under a management agreement overseen by the Department. The Department shall be accountable to the General Assembly and the people of the State through a comprehensive system of regulation, audits, reports, and enduring operational oversight. The Department's ongoing conduct of the Lottery through a management agreement with a private manager shall act to promote and ensure the integrity, security, honesty, and fairness of the Lottery's operation and administration. It is the intent of the General Assembly that the Department shall conduct the Lottery with the assistance of a private manager under a management agreement at all times in a manner consistent with 18 U.S.C. 1307(a)(1), 1307(b)(1), 1953(b)(4). (Source: P.A. 95-331, eff. 8-21-07; 95-673, eff. 10-11-07; 95-674, eff. 10-11-07; 95-876, eff. 8-21-08; 96-34, eff. 7-13-09.)

(20 ILCS 1605/9.1)

Sec. 9.1. Private manager and management agreement.

(a) As used in this Section:

"Offeror" means a person or group of persons that responds to a request for qualifications under this Section.

"Request for qualifications" means all materials and documents prepared by the Department to solicit the following from offerors:

(1) Statements of qualifications.

(2) Proposals to enter into a management agreement, including the identity of any prospective vendor or vendors that the offeror intends to initially engage to assist the offeror in performing its obligations under the management agreement.

"Final offer" means the last proposal submitted by an offeror in response to the request for qualifications, including the identity of any prospective vendor or vendors that the offeror intends to initially engage to assist the offeror in performing its obligations under the management agreement.

"Final offeror" means the offeror ultimately selected by the Governor to be the private manager for the Lottery under subsection (h) of this Section.

(b) By September 15, 2010, the Governor shall select a private manager for the total management of the Lottery with integrated functions, such as lottery game design, supply of goods and services, and advertising and as specified in this Section.

(c) Pursuant to the terms of this subsection, the Department shall endeavor to expeditiously terminate the existing contracts in support of the Lottery in effect on the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly in connection with the selection of the private manager. As part of its obligation to terminate these contracts and select the private manager, the Department shall establish a mutually agreeable timetable to transfer the functions of existing contractors to the private manager so that existing Lottery operations are not materially diminished or impaired during the transition. To that end, the Department shall do the following:

(1) where such contracts contain a provision authorizing termination upon notice, the

Department shall provide notice of termination to occur upon the mutually agreed timetable for transfer of functions;

(2) upon the expiration of any initial term or renewal term of the current Lottery contracts, the Department shall not renew such contract for a term extending beyond the mutually agreed timetable for transfer of functions; or

(3) in the event any current contract provides for termination of that contract upon the implementation of a contract with the private manager, the Department shall perform all necessary actions to terminate the contract on the date that coincides with the mutually agreed timetable for transfer of functions.

If the contracts to support the current operation of the Lottery in effect on the effective date of this amendatory Act of the 96th General Assembly are not subject to termination as provided for in this subsection (c), then the Department may include a provision in the contract with the private manager specifying a mutually agreeable methodology for incorporation.

(c-5) The Department shall include provisions in the management agreement whereby the private manager shall, for a fee, and pursuant to a contract negotiated with the Department (the "Employee Use Contract"), utilize the services of current Department employees to assist in the administration and operation of the Lottery. The Department shall be the employer of all such bargaining unit employees assigned to perform such work for the private manager, and such employees shall be State employees, as defined by the Personnel Code. Department employees shall operate under the same employment policies, rules, regulations, and procedures, as other employees of the Department. In addition, neither historical representation rights under the Illinois Public Labor Relations Act, nor existing collective bargaining

[May 19, 2014]

agreements, shall be disturbed by the management agreement with the private manager for the management of the Lottery.

(d) The management agreement with the private manager shall include all of the following:

- (1) A term not to exceed 10 years, including any renewals.
- (2) A provision specifying that the Department:
 - (A) shall exercise actual control over all significant business decisions;
 - (A-5) has the authority to direct or countermand operating decisions by the private manager at any time;
 - (B) has ready access at any time to information regarding Lottery operations;
 - (C) has the right to demand and receive information from the private manager concerning any aspect of the Lottery operations at any time; and
 - (D) retains ownership of all trade names, trademarks, and intellectual property associated with the Lottery.
- (3) A provision imposing an affirmative duty on the private manager to provide the Department with material information and with any information the private manager reasonably believes the Department would want to know to enable the Department to conduct the Lottery.
- (4) A provision requiring the private manager to provide the Department with advance notice of any operating decision that bears significantly on the public interest, including, but not limited to, decisions on the kinds of games to be offered to the public and decisions affecting the relative risk and reward of the games being offered, so the Department has a reasonable opportunity to evaluate and countermand that decision.
- (5) A provision providing for compensation of the private manager that may consist of, among other things, a fee for services and a performance based bonus as consideration for managing the Lottery, including terms that may provide the private manager with an increase in compensation if Lottery revenues grow by a specified percentage in a given year.
- (6) (Blank).
- (7) A provision requiring the deposit of all Lottery proceeds to be deposited into the State Lottery Fund except as otherwise provided in Section 20 of this Act.
- (8) A provision requiring the private manager to locate its principal office within the State.
- (8-5) A provision encouraging that at least 20% of the cost of contracts entered into for goods and services by the private manager in connection with its management of the Lottery, other than contracts with sales agents or technical advisors, be awarded to businesses that are a minority owned business, a female owned business, or a business owned by a person with disability, as those terms are defined in the Business Enterprise for Minorities, Females, and Persons with Disabilities Act.
- (9) A requirement that so long as the private manager complies with all the conditions of the agreement under the oversight of the Department, the private manager shall have the following duties and obligations with respect to the management of the Lottery:
 - (A) The right to use equipment and other assets used in the operation of the Lottery.
 - (B) The rights and obligations under contracts with retailers and vendors.
 - (C) The implementation of a comprehensive security program by the private manager.
 - (D) The implementation of a comprehensive system of internal audits.
 - (E) The implementation of a program by the private manager to curb compulsive gambling by persons playing the Lottery.
 - (F) A system for determining (i) the type of Lottery games, (ii) the method of selecting winning tickets, (iii) the manner of payment of prizes to holders of winning tickets, (iv) the frequency of drawings of winning tickets, (v) the method to be used in selling tickets, (vi) a system for verifying the validity of tickets claimed to be winning tickets, (vii) the basis upon which retailer commissions are established by the manager, and (viii) minimum payouts.
- (10) A requirement that advertising and promotion must be consistent with Section 7.8a of this Act.
- (11) A requirement that the private manager market the Lottery to those residents who are new, infrequent, or lapsed players of the Lottery, especially those who are most likely to make regular purchases on the Internet as permitted by law.
- (12) A code of ethics for the private manager's officers and employees.
- (13) A requirement that the Department monitor and oversee the private manager's practices and take action that the Department considers appropriate to ensure that the private manager is in compliance with the terms of the management agreement, while allowing the manager, unless

specifically prohibited by law or the management agreement, to negotiate and sign its own contracts with vendors.

(14) A provision requiring the private manager to periodically file, at least on an annual basis, appropriate financial statements in a form and manner acceptable to the Department.

(15) Cash reserves requirements.

(16) Procedural requirements for obtaining the prior approval of the Department when a management agreement or an interest in a management agreement is sold, assigned, transferred, or pledged as collateral to secure financing.

(17) Grounds for the termination of the management agreement by the Department or the private manager.

(18) Procedures for amendment of the agreement.

(19) A provision requiring the private manager to engage in an open and competitive bidding process for any procurement having a cost in excess of \$50,000 that is not a part of the private manager's final offer. The process shall favor the selection of a vendor deemed to have submitted a proposal that provides the Lottery with the best overall value. The process shall not be subject to the provisions of the Illinois Procurement Code, unless specifically required by the management agreement.

(20) The transition of rights and obligations, including any associated equipment or other assets used in the operation of the Lottery, from the manager to any successor manager of the lottery, including the Department, following the termination of or foreclosure upon the management agreement.

(21) Right of use of copyrights, trademarks, and service marks held by the Department in the name of the State. The agreement must provide that any use of them by the manager shall only be for the purpose of fulfilling its obligations under the management agreement during the term of the agreement.

(22) The disclosure of any information requested by the Department to enable it to comply with the reporting requirements and information requests provided for under subsection (p) of this Section.

(e) Notwithstanding any other law to the contrary, the Department shall select a private manager through a competitive request for qualifications process consistent with Section 20-35 of the Illinois Procurement Code, which shall take into account:

(1) the offeror's ability to market the Lottery to those residents who are new, infrequent, or lapsed players of the Lottery, especially those who are most likely to make regular purchases on the Internet;

(2) the offeror's ability to address the State's concern with the social effects of gambling on those who can least afford to do so;

(3) the offeror's ability to provide the most successful management of the Lottery for the benefit of the people of the State based on current and past business practices or plans of the offeror; and

(4) the offeror's poor or inadequate past performance in servicing, equipping, operating or managing a lottery on behalf of Illinois, another State or foreign government and attracting persons who are not currently regular players of a lottery.

(f) The Department may retain the services of an advisor or advisors with significant experience in financial services or the management, operation, and procurement of goods, services, and equipment for a government-run lottery to assist in the preparation of the terms of the request for qualifications and selection of the private manager. Any prospective advisor seeking to provide services under this subsection (f) shall disclose any material business or financial relationship during the past 3 years with any potential offeror, or with a contractor or subcontractor presently providing goods, services, or equipment to the Department to support the Lottery. The Department shall evaluate the material business or financial relationship of each prospective advisor. The Department shall not select any prospective advisor with a substantial business or financial relationship that the Department deems to impair the objectivity of the services to be provided by the prospective advisor. During the course of the advisor's engagement by the Department, and for a period of one year thereafter, the advisor shall not enter into any business or financial relationship with any offeror or any vendor identified to assist an offeror in performing its obligations under the management agreement. Any advisor retained by the Department shall be disqualified from being an offeror. The Department shall not include terms in the request for qualifications that provide a material advantage whether directly or indirectly to any potential offeror, or any contractor or subcontractor presently providing goods, services, or equipment to the Department to support the Lottery, including terms contained in previous responses to requests for proposals or qualifications submitted to Illinois, another State or foreign government when those terms are uniquely associated with a particular

potential offeror, contractor, or subcontractor. The request for proposals offered by the Department on December 22, 2008 as "LOT08GAMESYS" and reference number "22016176" is declared void.

(g) The Department shall select at least 2 offerors as finalists to potentially serve as the private manager no later than August 9, 2010. Upon making preliminary selections, the Department shall schedule a public hearing on the finalists' proposals and provide public notice of the hearing at least 7 calendar days before the hearing. The notice must include all of the following:

- (1) The date, time, and place of the hearing.
- (2) The subject matter of the hearing.
- (3) A brief description of the management agreement to be awarded.
- (4) The identity of the offerors that have been selected as finalists to serve as the private manager.
- (5) The address and telephone number of the Department.

(h) At the public hearing, the Department shall (i) provide sufficient time for each finalist to present and explain its proposal to the Department and the Governor or the Governor's designee, including an opportunity to respond to questions posed by the Department, Governor, or designee and (ii) allow the public and non-selected offerors to comment on the presentations. The Governor or a designee shall attend the public hearing. After the public hearing, the Department shall have 14 calendar days to recommend to the Governor whether a management agreement should be entered into with a particular finalist. After reviewing the Department's recommendation, the Governor may accept or reject the Department's recommendation, and shall select a final offeror as the private manager by publication of a notice in the Illinois Procurement Bulletin on or before September 15, 2010. The Governor shall include in the notice a detailed explanation and the reasons why the final offeror is superior to other offerors and will provide management services in a manner that best achieves the objectives of this Section. The Governor shall also sign the management agreement with the private manager.

(i) Any action to contest the private manager selected by the Governor under this Section must be brought within 7 calendar days after the publication of the notice of the designation of the private manager as provided in subsection (h) of this Section.

(j) The Lottery shall remain, for so long as a private manager manages the Lottery in accordance with provisions of this Act, a Lottery conducted by the State, and the State shall not be authorized to sell or transfer the Lottery to a third party.

(k) Any tangible personal property used exclusively in connection with the lottery that is owned by the Department and leased to the private manager shall be owned by the Department in the name of the State and shall be considered to be public property devoted to an essential public and governmental function.

(l) The Department may exercise any of its powers under this Section or any other law as necessary or desirable for the execution of the Department's powers under this Section.

(m) Neither this Section nor any management agreement entered into under this Section prohibits the General Assembly from authorizing forms of gambling that are not in direct competition with the Lottery.

(n) The private manager shall be subject to a complete investigation in the third, seventh, and tenth years of the agreement (if the agreement is for a 10-year term) by the Department in cooperation with the Auditor General to determine whether the private manager has complied with this Section and the management agreement. The private manager shall bear the cost of an investigation or reinvestigation of the private manager under this subsection.

(o) The powers conferred by this Section are in addition and supplemental to the powers conferred by any other law. If any other law or rule is inconsistent with this Section, including, but not limited to, provisions of the Illinois Procurement Code, then this Section controls as to any management agreement entered into under this Section. This Section and any rules adopted under this Section contain full and complete authority for a management agreement between the Department and a private manager. No law, procedure, proceeding, publication, notice, consent, approval, order, or act by the Department or any other officer, Department, agency, or instrumentality of the State or any political subdivision is required for the Department to enter into a management agreement under this Section. This Section contains full and complete authority for the Department to approve any contracts entered into by a private manager with a vendor providing goods, services, or both goods and services to the private manager under the terms of the management agreement, including subcontractors of such vendors.

Upon receipt of a written request from the Chief Procurement Officer, the Department shall provide to the Chief Procurement Officer a complete and un-redacted copy of the management agreement or any contract that is subject to the Department's approval authority under this subsection (o). The Department shall provide a copy of the agreement or contract to the Chief Procurement Officer in the time specified by the Chief Procurement Officer in his or her written request, but no later than 5 business days after the request is received by the Department. The Chief Procurement Officer must retain any portions of the

management agreement or of any contract designated by the Department as confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information in complete confidence pursuant to subsection (g) of Section 7 of the Freedom of Information Act. The Department shall also provide the Chief Procurement Officer with reasonable advance written notice of any contract that is pending Department approval.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section to the contrary, the Chief Procurement Officer shall adopt administrative rules, including emergency rules, to establish a procurement process to select a successor private manager if a private management agreement has been terminated. The selection process shall at a minimum take into account the criteria set forth in items (1) through (4) of subsection (e) of this Section and may include provisions consistent with subsections (f), (g), (h), and (i) of this Section. The Chief Procurement Officer shall also implement and administer the adopted selection process upon the termination of a private management agreement. The Department, after the Chief Procurement Officer certifies that the procurement process has been followed in accordance with the rules adopted under this subsection (o), shall select a final offeror as the private manager and sign the management agreement with the private manager.

Except as provided in Sections 21.2, 21.5, 21.6, 21.7, ~~and 21.8~~, and 21.9, the Department shall distribute all proceeds of lottery tickets and shares sold in the following priority and manner:

(1) The payment of prizes and retailer bonuses.

(2) The payment of costs incurred in the operation and administration of the Lottery, including the payment of sums due to the private manager under the management agreement with the Department.

(3) On the last day of each month or as soon thereafter as possible, the State Comptroller shall direct and the State Treasurer shall transfer from the State Lottery Fund to the Common School Fund an amount that is equal to the proceeds transferred in the corresponding month of fiscal year 2009, as adjusted for inflation, to the Common School Fund.

(4) On or before the last day of each fiscal year, deposit any remaining proceeds, subject to payments under items (1), (2), and (3) into the Capital Projects Fund each fiscal year.

(p) The Department shall be subject to the following reporting and information request requirements:

(1) the Department shall submit written quarterly reports to the Governor and the General Assembly on the activities and actions of the private manager selected under this Section;

(2) upon request of the Chief Procurement Officer, the Department shall promptly produce information related to the procurement activities of the Department and the private manager requested by the Chief Procurement Officer; the Chief Procurement Officer must retain confidential, proprietary, or trade secret information designated by the Department in complete confidence pursuant to subsection (g) of Section 7 of the Freedom of Information Act; and

(3) at least 30 days prior to the beginning of the Department's fiscal year, the Department shall prepare an annual written report on the activities of the private manager selected under this Section and deliver that report to the Governor and General Assembly.

(Source: P.A. 97-464, eff. 8-19-11; 98-463, eff. 8-16-13.)

(20 ILCS 1605/20) (from Ch. 120, par. 1170)
Sec. 20. State Lottery Fund.

(a) There is created in the State Treasury a special fund to be known as the "State Lottery Fund". Such fund shall consist of all revenues received from (1) the sale of lottery tickets or shares, (net of commissions, fees representing those expenses that are directly proportionate to the sale of tickets or shares at the agent location, and prizes of less than \$600 which have been validly paid at the agent level), (2) application fees, and (3) all other sources including moneys credited or transferred thereto from any other fund or source pursuant to law. Interest earnings of the State Lottery Fund shall be credited to the Common School Fund.

(b) The receipt and distribution of moneys under Section 21.5 of this Act shall be in accordance with Section 21.5.

(c) The receipt and distribution of moneys under Section 21.6 of this Act shall be in accordance with Section 21.6.

(d) The receipt and distribution of moneys under Section 21.7 of this Act shall be in accordance with Section 21.7.

(e) The receipt and distribution of moneys under Section 21.8 of this Act shall be in accordance with Section 21.8.

(f) The receipt and distribution of moneys under Section 21.9 of this Act shall be in accordance with Section 21.9.

(Source: P.A. 94-120, eff. 7-6-05; 94-585, eff. 8-15-05; 95-331, eff. 8-21-07; 95-673, eff. 10-11-07; 95-674, eff. 10-11-07; 95-876, eff. 8-21-08.)

(20 ILCS 1605/21.9 new)

Sec. 21.9. Go For The Gold scratch-off game.

(a) The Department shall offer a special instant scratch-off game with the title of "Go For The Gold". The game must commence on July 1, 2014 or as soon thereafter, at the discretion of the Director, as is reasonably practical. The operation of the game is governed by this Act and by any rules adopted by the Department. If any provision of this Section is inconsistent with any other provision of this Act, then this Section governs.

(b) The Special Olympics Illinois and Special Children's Charities Fund is created as a special fund in the State treasury. The net revenue from the Go For The Gold special instant scratch-off game must be deposited into the Special Olympics Illinois and Special Children's Charities Fund for appropriation by the General Assembly solely to the Department of Human Services, which must distribute the moneys as follows: (i) 75% of the moneys to Special Olympics Illinois to support the statewide training, competitions, and programs for future Special Olympics athletes; and (ii) 25% of the moneys to Special Children's Charities to support the City of Chicago-wide training, competitions, and programs for future Special Olympics athletes. The moneys may not be used for institutional, organizational, or community-based overhead costs, indirect costs, or levies.

Moneys received for the purposes of this Section, including, without limitation, net revenue from the special instant scratch-off game and gifts, grants, and awards from any public or private entity, must be deposited into the Special Olympics and Special Children's Charities Fund. Any interest earned on moneys in the Special Olympics and Special Children's Charities Fund must be deposited into the Special Olympics and Special Children's Charities Fund.

For purposes of this subsection, "net revenue" means the total amount for which tickets have been sold less the sum of the amount paid out in prizes and the actual administrative expenses of the Department solely related to the Go For The Gold game.

(c) During the time that tickets are sold for the Go For The Gold game, the Department shall not unreasonably diminish the efforts devoted to marketing any other instant scratch-off lottery game.

(d) The Department may adopt any rules necessary to implement and administer the provisions of this Section.

Section 10. The State Finance Act is amended by adding Section 5.855 as follows:
(30 ILCS 105/5.855 new)

Sec. 5.855. The Special Olympics Illinois and Special Children's Charities Fund.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

Under the rules, the foregoing **Senate Bill No. 219**, with House Amendment No. 1, was referred to the Secretary's Desk.

A message from the House by
Mr. Mapes, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 226

A bill for AN ACT concerning State government.

Together with the following amendment which is attached, in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

House Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL NO. 226

Passed the House, as amended, May 16, 2014.

TIMOTHY D. MAPES, Clerk of the House

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 226

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 226 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Department of Central Management Services Law of the Civil Administrative Code of Illinois is amended by adding Section 405-525 as follows:

(20 ILCS 405/405-525 new)

Sec. 405-525. Support Your Neighbor Commission.

[May 19, 2014]

(a) The Support Your Neighbor Commission is created within the Department of Central Management Services to help increase the number of American and Illinois made products procured and sold by the State.

(b) The Commission shall be composed of:

- (1) one member appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives;
- (2) one member appointed by the Minority Leader of the House of Representatives;
- (3) one member appointed by the President of the Senate;
- (4) one member appointed by the Minority Leader of the Senate;
- (5) one member appointed by the Governor to represent labor organizations representing manufacturing employees with over 500,000 members;
- (6) one member appointed by the Governor to represent auto workers' unions;
- (7) one member appointed by the Governor to represent machinist workers' unions;
- (8) one member appointed by the Governor to represent garment workers' unions;
- (9) one member appointed by the Governor to represent statewide business groups representing American manufacturers;
- (10) one member appointed by the Governor to represent the auto industry manufacturing sector;
- (11) one member appointed by the Governor to represent the interests of construction equipment and farm implement manufacturing; and
- (12) one member appointed by the Governor to represent the interests of the American garment industry.

(c) In addition to the members listed in subsection (b) of this Section, each of the following, or their designee, shall serve as an ex-officio non-voting member of the Commission: the Director of Central Management Services, the Director of Labor, the Director of Commerce and Economic Opportunity, the Executive Director of the Board of Higher Education, the Secretary of Transportation, and the Director of Natural Resources.

(d) Appointed members shall serve a term of 4 years. The initial terms for members of the Commission shall commence on January 26, 2015.

(e) The members of the Commission shall serve without compensation but shall be reimbursed for their reasonable and necessary expenses, including travel expenses, from appropriations to the Department of Central Management Services available for that purpose and subject to the rules of the appropriate travel control board.

(f) Except ex-officio members, the members of the Commission shall be considered members with voting rights. A quorum of the Commission members shall consist of a majority of the members of the Commission. All actions and recommendations of the Commission must be approved by a majority vote of the members.

(g) Vacancies occurring among the members shall be filled in the same manner as the original appointment for the remainder of the unexpired term. Members are eligible for reappointment.

(h) The Commission shall file a report by December 31 of each year with the Department of Central Management Services. This report shall be posted on the Internet website of the Department of Central Management Services.

(i) This Section is repealed on December 31, 2017.

Section 10. The Department of Natural Resources Act is amended by adding Section 20-20 as follows:
(20 ILCS 801/20-20 new)

Sec. 20-20. Products manufactured in the United States. The Illinois State Museum shall set aside a booth or section of the gift shop for the sale of products manufactured in the United States. As used in this Section, "products manufactured in the United States" means assembled articles, materials, or supplies for which design, final assembly, processing, packaging, testing, or other process that adds value, quality, or reliability occurred in the United States.

Section 15. The State Parks Act is amended by adding Section 4b as follows:
(20 ILCS 835/4b new)

Sec. 4b. Products manufactured in the United States. Gift shops and concession areas within State parks and parkways shall set aside a booth or section for the sale of products manufactured in the United States. As used in this Section, "products manufactured in the United States" means assembled articles, materials, or supplies for which design, final assembly, processing, packaging, testing, or other process that adds value, quality, or reliability occurred in the United States.

Section 20. The Historic Preservation Agency Act is amended by adding Section 35 as follows:

[May 19, 2014]

(20 ILCS 3405/35 new)

Sec. 35. Products manufactured in the United States. State Historic Sites, State Memorials, and other properties that are under the jurisdiction of the Historic Preservation Agency under Section 6 of this Act shall set aside a booth or section for the sale of products manufactured in the United States. As used in this Section, "products manufactured in the United States" means assembled articles, materials, or supplies for which design, final assembly, processing, packaging, testing, or other process that adds value, quality, or reliability occurred in the United States.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

Under the rules, the foregoing **Senate Bill No. 226**, with House Amendment No. 1, was referred to the Secretary's Desk.

A message from the House by

Mr. Mapes, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 1941

A bill for AN ACT concerning business.

Together with the following amendment which is attached, in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

House Amendment No. 2 to SENATE BILL NO. 1941

Passed the House, as amended, May 16, 2014.

TIMOTHY D. MAPES, Clerk of the House

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO SENATE BILL 1941

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Bill 1941 on page 1 by replacing lines 18, 19, and 20 with the following:

"Illinois Supreme Court, Illinois Appellate Court, and Illinois Court of Claims; or
(G) Illinois Supreme Court rules."

Under the rules, the foregoing **Senate Bill No. 1941**, with House Amendment No. 2, was referred to the Secretary's Desk.

A message from the House by

Mr. Mapes, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 2003

A bill for AN ACT concerning government.

Together with the following amendment which is attached, in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

House Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL NO. 2003

Passed the House, as amended, May 16, 2014.

TIMOTHY D. MAPES, Clerk of the House

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 2003

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2003 on page 1 by replacing line 4 with the following:

"Section 5. The Victims' Economic Security and Safety Act is amended by changing Section 30 as follows:

(820 ILCS 180/30)

Sec. 30. Victims' employment sustainability; prohibited discriminatory acts.

[May 19, 2014]

(a) An employer shall not fail to hire, refuse to hire, discharge, constructively discharge, or harass any individual, otherwise discriminate against any individual with respect to the compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of employment of the individual, or retaliate against an individual in any form or manner, and a public agency shall not deny, reduce, or terminate the benefits of, otherwise sanction, or harass any individual, otherwise discriminate against any individual with respect to the amount, terms, or conditions of public assistance of the individual, or retaliate against an individual in any form or manner, because:

(1) the individual involved:

(A) is or is perceived to be a victim of domestic or sexual violence;

(B) attended, participated in, prepared for, or requested leave to attend, participate in, or prepare for a criminal or civil court proceeding relating to an incident of domestic or sexual violence of which the individual or a family or household member of the individual was a victim, or requested or took leave for any other reason provided under Section 20; or

(C) requested an adjustment to a job structure, workplace facility, or work requirement, including a transfer, reassignment, or modified schedule, leave, a changed telephone number or seating assignment, installation of a lock, or implementation of a safety procedure in response to actual or threatened domestic or sexual violence, regardless of whether the request was granted; or

(D) is an employee whose employer is subject to Section 21 of the Workplace Violence Prevention

Act; or

(2) the workplace is disrupted or threatened by the action of a person whom the individual states has committed or threatened to commit domestic or sexual violence against the individual or the individual's family or household member.

(b) In this Section:

(1) "Discriminate", used with respect to the terms, conditions, or privileges of employment or with respect to the terms or conditions of public assistance, includes not making a reasonable accommodation to the known limitations resulting from circumstances relating to being a victim of domestic or sexual violence or a family or household member being a victim of domestic or sexual violence of an otherwise qualified individual:

(A) who is:

(i) an applicant or employee of the employer (including a public agency); or

(ii) an applicant for or recipient of public assistance from a public agency;

and

(B) who is:

(i) a victim of domestic or sexual violence; or

(ii) with a family or household member who is a victim of domestic or sexual violence whose interests are not adverse to the individual in subparagraph (A) as it relates to the domestic or sexual violence;

unless the employer or public agency can demonstrate that the accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the operation of the employer or public agency.

A reasonable accommodation must be made in a timely fashion. Any exigent circumstances or danger facing the employee or his or her family or household member shall be considered in determining whether the accommodation is reasonable.

(2) "Qualified individual" means:

(A) in the case of an applicant or employee described in paragraph (1)(A)(i), an individual who, but for being a victim of domestic or sexual violence or with a family or household member who is a victim of domestic or sexual violence, can perform the essential functions of the employment position that such individual holds or desires; or

(B) in the case of an applicant or recipient described in paragraph (1)(A)(ii), an individual who, but for being a victim of domestic or sexual violence or with a family or household member who is a victim of domestic or sexual violence, can satisfy the essential requirements of the program providing the public assistance that the individual receives or desires.

(3) "Reasonable accommodation" may include an adjustment to a job structure, workplace facility, or work requirement, including a transfer, reassignment, or modified schedule, leave, a changed telephone number or seating assignment, installation of a lock, or implementation of a safety procedure, or assistance in documenting domestic or sexual violence that occurs at the workplace or in work-related settings, in response to actual or threatened domestic or sexual violence.

(4) Undue hardship.

(A) In general. "Undue hardship" means an action requiring significant difficulty or

expense, when considered in light of the factors set forth in subparagraph (B).

(B) Factors to be considered. In determining whether a reasonable accommodation would impose an undue hardship on the operation of an employer or public agency, factors to be considered include:

(i) the nature and cost of the reasonable accommodation needed under this Section;

(ii) the overall financial resources of the facility involved in the provision of the reasonable accommodation, the number of persons employed at such facility, the effect on expenses and resources, or the impact otherwise of such accommodation on the operation of the facility;

(iii) the overall financial resources of the employer or public agency, the overall size of the business of an employer or public agency with respect to the number of employees of the employer or public agency, and the number, type, and location of the facilities of an employer or public agency; and

(iv) the type of operation of the employer or public agency, including the composition, structure, and functions of the workforce of the employer or public agency, the geographic separateness of the facility from the employer or public agency, and the administrative or fiscal relationship of the facility to the employer or public agency.

(c) An employer subject to Section 21 of the Workplace Violence Protection Act shall not violate any provisions of the Workplace Violence Prevention Act.

(Source: P.A. 96-635, eff. 8-24-09.)

Section 10. The Workplace Violence Prevention Act is amended"; and

on page 2, line 4, by changing "5" to "15 5"; and

on page 4, line 19, by replacing "1986" with "1986 or is an employee who is a victim of unlawful violence as proscribed in Article 11 or Sections 12-7.3, 12-7.4, and 12-7.5 of the Criminal Code of 2012"; and

on page 17 by deleting line 23; and

on page 18 by deleting lines 1 through 6; and

on page 18, line 7, by changing "(c)" to "(b)".

Under the rules, the foregoing **Senate Bill No. 2003**, with House Amendment No. 1, was referred to the Secretary's Desk.

A message from the House by
Mr. Mapes, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 2744

A bill for AN ACT concerning State government.

Together with the following amendment which is attached, in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

House Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL NO. 2744

Passed the House, as amended, May 16, 2014.

TIMOTHY D. MAPES, Clerk of the House

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 2744

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2744 on page 2, line 21, after "products", by inserting "offered through insurers licensed to transact insurance business in Illinois".

Under the rules, the foregoing **Senate Bill No. 2744**, with House Amendment No. 1, was referred to the Secretary's Desk.

A message from the House by

[May 19, 2014]

Mr. Mapes, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 2765

A bill for AN ACT concerning education.

Together with the following amendment which is attached, in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

House Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL NO. 2765

Passed the House, as amended, May 16, 2014.

TIMOTHY D. MAPES, Clerk of the House

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 2765

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2765 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Eastern Illinois University Law is amended by changing Section 10-92 as follows:
(110 ILCS 665/10-92)

(Section scheduled to be repealed on July 1, 2019)

Sec. 10-92. Tuition ~~affordability discount waiver limitation~~ pilot program.

(a) The General Assembly makes all of the following findings:

(1) Both access and affordability are important points in the Illinois Public Agenda for College and Career Success.

(2) This State is in the top quartile with respect to the percentage of family income needed to pay for college.

(3) Research suggests that as loan amounts increase, versus grants-in-aid, the probability of college attendance decreases.

(4) There is further research indicating socioeconomic status may affect the willingness of students to use loans to attend college.

(5) Strategic use of tuition discounting ~~waivers~~ will decrease the amount of loans that students must use to pay for tuition.

(6) A modest, individually tailored tuition discount ~~waiver~~ can make the difference in choosing to attend college and would enhance college access for low (up to 150% of the federal poverty level) and middle income (151% to 300% of the federal poverty level) families.

(7) Even if the federally calculated financial need for college attendance is met, the federally determined Expected Family Contribution can still be a daunting amount.

(8) This State is the second largest exporter of students in the country.

(9) Illinois students need to be kept in this State. State universities in other states have adopted pricing and incentives that make college expenses for residents of this State less than in this State.

(10) A mechanism is needed to stop the outflow of Illinois students to institutions in other states, assisting in State efforts to maintain and educate a highly trained workforce.

(11) By being competitive on costs of attendance, this State can bring out-of-state students to this State.

(12) The ~~pilot~~ program established under this Section will allow Eastern Illinois University to compete for highly qualified students who may reside in other states by mitigating the effect of cost differences.

(13) Modest tuition discounts ~~waivers~~, individually targeted and tailored, result in enhanced revenue for university programs.

(14) By increasing Eastern Illinois University's capacity to strategically use tuition discounting ~~waivers~~, the University will be capable of creating enhanced tuition revenue by increasing enrollment yields.

(15) The Board of Higher Education's current institutional tuition waiver limitation is 3% of total available undergraduate tuition revenue.

(b) The Board shall establish a pilot program to increase the Board of Higher Education's institutional tuition waiver limitation for the university over a 4-year period to increase access to college and make college more affordable for undergraduate students. Under the ~~pilot~~ program, the institutional tuition waiver limitation shall be increased by 2 percentage points in the 2012-2013 academic year, 2 percentage

[May 19, 2014]

points in the 2013-2014 academic year, 2 percentage points in the 2014-2015 academic year, and one percentage point in the 2015-2016 academic year, resulting in an institutional tuition waiver limitation of 10% in the fourth year of the ~~pilot~~ program and thereafter.

(c) The ~~pilot~~ program shall require that students who receive a tuition discount waiver under the ~~pilot~~ program be accepted to the university through normal admissions standards and processes. Individual tuition discounts ~~waivers~~ granted under the ~~pilot~~ program must not exceed \$2,500 per academic year. The ~~pilot~~ program shall provide a maximum of one discount waiver per academic year for a maximum of 4 years to each student in the ~~pilot~~ program who maintains satisfactory academic progress. The ~~pilot~~ program shall be terminated after the ~~2018-2019~~ ~~2015-2016~~ academic year, with no new students receiving discounts ~~waivers~~. However, notwithstanding the Board of Higher Education's institutional tuition waiver limitation, existing students receiving discounts ~~waivers~~ under the ~~pilot~~ program are eligible to maintain those discounts ~~waivers~~, with satisfactory academic progress, under the 4-year limitation, after the ~~2018-2019~~ ~~2015-2016~~ academic year due to maintenance of effort within their 4-year window. Sunset dates for discounted ~~waiver~~ support shall be based upon the first academic year in which a student receives a discount waiver. ~~The sunset dates are as follows for each annual cohort of pilot program participants:~~

(1) Cohort 1: the beginning year is ~~2012-2013~~ and the terminal year is ~~2015-2016~~.

(2) Cohort 2: the beginning year is ~~2013-2014~~ and the terminal year is ~~2016-2017~~.

(3) Cohort 3: the beginning year is ~~2014-2015~~ and the terminal year is ~~2017-2018~~.

(4) Cohort 4: the beginning year is ~~2015-2016~~ and the terminal year is ~~2018-2019~~.

(d) ~~Every 2 years, the~~ The Board shall ~~annually~~ report to the Board of Higher Education on the ~~pilot~~ program's impact on tuition revenue, enrollment goals, and increasing access and affordability on such dates as the Board of Higher Education shall determine.

(e) The Board of Higher Education may adopt any rules that are necessary to implement this Section.

(f) This Section is repealed on July 1, ~~2022~~ ~~2019~~.

(Source: P.A. 97-290, eff. 8-10-11)."

Under the rules, the foregoing **Senate Bill No. 2765**, with House Amendment No. 1, was referred to the Secretary's Desk.

A message from the House by

Mr. Mapes, Clerk:

Mr. President -- I am directed to inform the Senate that the House of Representatives has concurred with the Senate in the passage of a bill of the following title, to-wit:

SENATE BILL NO. 2769

A bill for AN ACT concerning government.

Together with the following amendment which is attached, in the adoption of which I am instructed to ask the concurrence of the Senate, to-wit:

House Amendment No. 1 to SENATE BILL NO. 2769

Passed the House, as amended, May 16, 2014.

TIMOTHY D. MAPES, Clerk of the House

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE BILL 2769

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Bill 2769 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Organ Donor Leave Act is amended by changing Sections 5, 10, and 20 as follows:

(5 ILCS 327/5)

Sec. 5. Purpose. This Act is intended to provide time off with pay for State employees who donate an organ, bone marrow, or blood ~~or blood platelets~~.

(Source: P.A. 92-754, eff. 1-1-03.)

(5 ILCS 327/10)

Sec. 10. Definitions. As used in this Act:

"Agency" means any branch, department, board, committee, or commission of State government, but does not include units of local government, school districts, or boards of election commissioners.

"Blood" means both the liquid that circulates in the arteries and veins of a human body and any cells or parts thereof, including, but not limited to, whole blood, plasma, red blood cells, white blood cells, and platelets.

"Department" means the Department of Central Management Services.

[May 19, 2014]

"Organ" means any biological tissue of the human body that may be donated by a living donor, including, but not limited to, the kidney, liver, lung, pancreas, intestine, bone, and skin or any subpart thereof.

"Participating employee" means a permanent full-time or part-time employee who has been employed by an agency for a period of 6 months or more and who donates an organ, bone marrow, or blood ~~or blood platelets~~.

(Source: P.A. 92-754, eff. 1-1-03.)

(5 ILCS 327/20)

Sec. 20. Administration of Act.

(a) ~~A~~ On request, a participating employee subject to this Act who wishes to donate blood, an organ, or bone marrow shall request in advance leave under this Act ~~may be entitled to organ donation leave with pay.~~

(b) An employee may use (i) up to 30 days of organ donation leave in any 12-month period to serve as a bone marrow donor, (ii) up to 30 days of organ donation leave in any 12-month period to serve as an organ donor, (iii) up to one hour ~~or more~~ to donate blood ~~every 56 days~~, (iv) up to 1.5 hours to donate double red cells, and (v) ~~(iv)~~ up to 2 hours ~~or more~~ to donate blood platelets. The frequency of the blood donation times shall be set by rule in accordance with appropriate medical standards established by the American Red Cross, America's Blood Centers, the American Association of Blood Banks, or other nationally-recognized standards. Leave under item (iv) may not be granted more than 24 times in a 12-month period.

(c) An employee may use organ donation leave or other leave authorized in subsection (b) of this Section only after obtaining approval from the employee's agency.

(d) An employee may not be required to use accumulated sick or vacation leave time before being eligible for organ donor leave.

(e) The Department must adopt rules governing organ donation leave, including rules that (i) establish conditions and procedures for requesting and approving leave and (ii) require medical documentation of the proposed organ or bone marrow donation before leave is approved by the employing agency.

(Source: P.A. 94-33, eff. 1-1-06; 95-354, eff. 1-1-08.)

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

Under the rules, the foregoing **Senate Bill No. 2769**, with House Amendment No. 1, was referred to the Secretary's Desk.

JOINT ACTION MOTIONS FILED

The following Joint Action Motions to the Senate Bills listed below have been filed with the Secretary and referred to the Committee on Assignments:

Motion to Concur in House Amendment 1 to Senate Bill 2765

Motion to Concur in House Amendment 1 to Senate Bill 2769

READING BILLS FROM THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES A SECOND TIME

On motion of Senator Muñoz, **House Bill No. 4694** was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator McCann, **House Bill No. 5082** was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Manar, **House Bill No. 5606** was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Manar, **House Bill No. 5613** was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

[May 19, 2014]

On motion of Senator Muñoz, **House Bill No. 5688** was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Martinez, **House Bill No. 4790** was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

PRESENTATION OF RESOLUTION

Senator Sandoval offered the following Senate Joint Resolution, which was referred to the Committee on Assignments:

SENATE JOINT RESOLUTION NO. 77

WHEREAS, Since 2000, gas tax revenues have declined significantly as a result of less driving, increasing fuel efficiency and decreasing purchasing power; while motor fuel prices have increased dramatically over the last several years, the total amount of motor fuel consumed in Illinois has remained relatively stagnant over the same time frame; and

WHEREAS, Since reaching its current rate structure in 1996, revenue from the State's motor fuel tax has experienced relatively limited growth; in 2000, \$1.384 billion in revenue was generated from the State's motor fuel tax; in Fiscal Year 2011, the total amount collected was \$1.347 billion; and

WHEREAS, As gas tax revenues dwindle, policymakers throughout the nation have had to divert billions from the general fund and other non-transportation funds to pay for infrastructure; this is increasing pressure on transportation policy makers to search for new, viable road financing mechanisms; and

WHEREAS, Mileage-based user fees are an alternative way to finance the construction and maintenance of roads; rather than the current gas tax method, which is based on the amount of fuel purchased at the pump, a vehicle miles traveled tax is based on how many miles are driven; and

WHEREAS, A mileage-based user fee system has been proposed in the United States and elsewhere in the world as an infrastructure funding mechanism to replace the gas tax; therefore, be it

RESOLVED, BY THE SENATE OF THE NINETY-EIGHTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES CONCURRING HEREIN, that there is created the Task Force on Sustainable Transportation Funding, to be comprised of the following members, with an emphasis on bipartisan and statewide legislative representation and diverse non-legislative stakeholder representation:

(1) one member of the Illinois House of Representatives and 2 members of the public who represent the transportation industry, the Illinois transportation research community, or national research and policy-making bodies appointed by the Speaker of the House of Representatives;

(2) one member of the Illinois Senate and 2 members of the public who represent the transportation industry, the Illinois transportation research community, or national research and policy-making bodies appointed by the President of the Senate;

(3) one member of the Illinois House of Representatives and 2 members of the public who represent the transportation industry, the Illinois transportation research community, or national research and policy-making bodies appointed by the Minority Leader of the House of Representatives;

(4) one member of the Illinois Senate and 2 members of the public who represent the transportation industry, the Illinois transportation research community, or national research and policy-making bodies appointed by the Minority Leader of the Senate;

(5) one member who is currently employed by the Illinois Department of Transportation appointed by the Secretary of the Illinois Department of Transportation; and

(6) one member who is currently employed by the Illinois Department of Revenue appointed by the Director of the Illinois Department of Revenue; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the members of the Task Force shall serve without compensation; and be it further

[May 19, 2014]

RESOLVED, That the members of the Task Force shall be considered members with voting rights; a quorum of the Task Force shall consist of a simple majority of the members of the Task Force; all actions and recommendations of the Task Force must be approved by a simple majority vote of the members; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Task Force shall meet within 60 days of the adoption of this resolution; the Task Force shall elect one member as chairperson at its initial meeting through a simple majority vote of the Task Force and shall thereafter meet at the call of the chairperson; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Illinois Department of Transportation shall provide administrative and other support to the Task Force; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Task Force shall:

(1) analyze the current trends between the infrastructure needs of Illinois and the revenue received from federal and State gas taxes and the level of highway and road investment that would reduce congestion, keep Illinois' economy competitive, and keep drivers safe; and

(2) analyze a user-fee based alternative to the current system of taxing highway use through motor vehicle fuel taxes; the Task Force shall gather public comment on the user-fee based alternative approach and make recommendations to the Department of Transportation, including recommendations on the creation of pilot programs to be used to test alternative approaches; the Task Force may also make recommendations to the Department on criteria to be used to evaluate pilot programs; and be it further

RESOLVED, That when the Task Force is studying user-fee based alternatives to the current system of taxing highway use through motor vehicle fuel taxes and developing recommendations on the design of pilot programs to test alternative approaches, the Task Force shall, under consultation with highway users and transportation stakeholders, take into consideration:

(1) the availability, adaptability, reliability and security of methods that might be used in recording and reporting highway use;

(2) the protection of any personally identifiable information used in reporting highway use;

(3) the ease and cost of recording and reporting highway use;

(4) the ease and cost of administering the collection of taxes and fees as an alternative to the current system; and

(5) any effective methods of maintaining compliance; and be it further

RESOLVED, That the Task Force shall submit a report of its findings and recommendations to the General Assembly by January 1, 2015.

READING BILL FROM THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES A SECOND TIME

On motion of Senator Raoul, **House Bill No. 4442** was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Trotter, **House Bill No. 4600** was taken up, read by title a second time and ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Trotter, **House Bill No. 5354** having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Public Health, adopted and ordered printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO HOUSE BILL 5354

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend House Bill 5354 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 5. The Food Handling Regulation Enforcement Act is amended by adding Section 3.4 as follows:

(410 ILCS 625/3.4 new)

[May 19, 2014]

Sec. 3.4. Home kitchen operation.

(a) For the purpose of this Section, "home kitchen operation" means a person who produces or packages non-potentially hazardous food in a kitchen of that person's primary domestic residence for direct sale by the owner or a family member, or for sale by a religious, charitable, or nonprofit organization, stored in the residence where the food is made. The following conditions must be met in order to qualify as a home kitchen operation:

(1) Monthly gross sales do not exceed \$1,000.

(2) The food is a non-potentially hazardous baked food, as defined in Section 4 of this Act.

(3) A written notice is provided to the purchaser that the product was produced in a home kitchen.

(4) The non-potentially hazardous baked food packaging conforms to the labeling requirements of the Illinois Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act and includes the following information on the label of each of its products:

(A) the name and address of the home kitchen operation;

(B) the common or usual name of the food product;

(C) all ingredients of the food product, including any colors, artificial flavors, and preservatives, listed in descending order by predominance of weight shown with common or usual names;

(D) the following phrase: "This product was produced in a home kitchen not subject to public health inspection that may also process common food allergens.";

(E) the date the product was processed; and

(F) allergen labeling as specified in federal labeling requirements.

(5) The name and residence of the person preparing and selling products as a home kitchen operation is registered with the unit of local government where the home kitchen operation resides.

(6) The person preparing and selling products as a home kitchen operation has a Department of Public Health approved Food Service Sanitation Management Certificate.

(7) The home kitchen operation shall register with the State-certified local public health department, which may include a reasonable fee set by the State-certified local public health department.

(b) The Department of Public Health or the health department of a unit of local government may inspect a home kitchen operation in the event of a complaint or disease outbreak.

(c) The provision for direct sales in this Section applies only to a home kitchen operation located in a municipality, township, or county where the local governing body has adopted an ordinance authorizing the direct sale of baked goods as described in Section 4 of this Act.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 was held in the Committee on Assignments.

There being no further amendments, the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

On motion of Senator Kotowski, **House Bill No. 3638** having been printed, was taken up and read by title a second time.

Senate Committee Amendment No. 1 was held in the Committee on Assignments.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Insurance, adopted and ordered printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO HOUSE BILL 3638

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend House Bill 3638 by replacing everything after the enacting clause with the following:

"Section 1. Short title. This amendatory Act may be referred to as the Health Insurance Consumer Protection Act of 2014.

Section 3. Findings and purpose. The General Assembly finds that the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act and the federal regulations implementing that Act give the State and its Department of Insurance primary responsibility for ensuring that all policies of health insurance and health care plans that are offered for sale directly to consumers in the State provide consumers with adequate information about the coverage offered to enable them to meaningfully compare plans and premiums and enroll in the appropriate policy or plan. The purpose of this amendatory Act of the 98th General Assembly is to build on the consumer protections provided in federal law for policies or health care benefit plans offered for sale directly to consumers through the Illinois Health Benefits Exchange.

Section 5. The Illinois Insurance Code is amended by changing Section 355a as follows:

[May 19, 2014]

(215 ILCS 5/355a) (from Ch. 73, par. 967a)

Sec. 355a. Standardization of terms and coverage.

(1) The purpose of this Section shall be (a) to provide reasonable standardization and simplification of terms and coverages of individual accident and health insurance policies to facilitate public understanding and comparisons; (b) to eliminate provisions contained in individual accident and health insurance policies which may be misleading or unreasonably confusing in connection either with the purchase of such coverages or with the settlement of claims; and (c) to provide for reasonable disclosure in the sale of accident and health coverages.

(2) Definitions applicable to this Section are as follows:

(a) "Policy" means all or any part of the forms constituting the contract between the insurer and the insured, including the policy, certificate, subscriber contract, riders, endorsements, and the application if attached, which are subject to filing with and approval by the Director.

(b) "Service corporations" means voluntary health and dental corporations organized and operating respectively under the Voluntary Health Services Plans Act and the Dental Service Plan Act.

(c) "Accident and health insurance" means insurance written under Article XX of the Insurance Code, other than credit accident and health insurance, and coverages provided in subscriber contracts issued by service corporations. For purposes of this Section such service corporations shall be deemed to be insurers engaged in the business of insurance.

(3) The Director shall issue such rules as he shall deem necessary or desirable to establish specific standards, including standards of full and fair disclosure that set forth the form and content and required disclosure for sale, of individual policies of accident and health insurance, which rules and regulations shall be in addition to and in accordance with the applicable laws of this State, and which may cover but shall not be limited to: (a) terms of renewability; (b) initial and subsequent conditions of eligibility; (c) non-duplication of coverage provisions; (d) coverage of dependents; (e) pre-existing conditions; (f) termination of insurance; (g) probationary periods; (h) limitation, exceptions, and reductions; (i) elimination periods; (j) requirements regarding replacements; (k) recurrent conditions; and (l) the definition of terms including but not limited to the following: hospital, accident, sickness, injury, physician, accidental means, total disability, partial disability, nervous disorder, guaranteed renewable, and non-cancellable.

The Director may issue rules that specify prohibited policy provisions not otherwise specifically authorized by statute which in the opinion of the Director are unjust, unfair or unfairly discriminatory to the policyholder, any person insured under the policy, or beneficiary.

(4) The Director shall issue such rules as he shall deem necessary or desirable to establish minimum standards for benefits under each category of coverage in individual accident and health policies, other than conversion policies issued pursuant to a contractual conversion privilege under a group policy, including but not limited to the following categories: (a) basic hospital expense coverage; (b) basic medical-surgical expense coverage; (c) hospital confinement indemnity coverage; (d) major medical expense coverage; (e) disability income protection coverage; (f) accident only coverage; and (g) specified disease or specified accident coverage.

Nothing in this subsection (4) shall preclude the issuance of any policy which combines two or more of the categories of coverage enumerated in subparagraphs (a) through (f) of this subsection.

No policy shall be delivered or issued for delivery in this State which does not meet the prescribed minimum standards for the categories of coverage listed in this subsection unless the Director finds that such policy is necessary to meet specific needs of individuals or groups and such individuals or groups will be adequately informed that such policy does not meet the prescribed minimum standards, and such policy meets the requirement that the benefits provided therein are reasonable in relation to the premium charged. The standards and criteria to be used by the Director in approving such policies shall be included in the rules required under this Section with as much specificity as practicable.

The Director shall prescribe by rule the method of identification of policies based upon coverages provided.

(5) (a) In order to provide for full and fair disclosure in the sale of individual accident and health insurance policies, no such policy shall be delivered or issued for delivery in this State unless the outline of coverage described in paragraph (b) of this subsection either accompanies the policy, or is delivered to the applicant at the time the application is made, and an acknowledgment signed by the insured, of receipt of delivery of such outline, is provided to the insurer. In the event the policy is issued on a basis other than that applied for, the outline of coverage properly describing the policy must accompany the policy when it is delivered and such outline shall clearly state that the policy differs, and to what extent, from that for which application was originally made. All policies, except single premium nonrenewal policies, shall have a notice prominently printed on the first page of the policy or attached thereto stating in substance,

that the policyholder shall have the right to return the policy within 10 days of its delivery and to have the premium refunded if after examination of the policy the policyholder is not satisfied for any reason.

(b) The Director shall issue such rules as he shall deem necessary or desirable to prescribe the format and content of the outline of coverage required by paragraph (a) of this subsection. "Format" means style, arrangement, and overall appearance, including such items as the size, color, and prominence of type and the arrangement of text and captions. "Content" shall include without limitation thereto, statements relating to the particular policy as to the applicable category of coverage prescribed under subsection 4; principal benefits; exceptions, reductions and limitations; and renewal provisions, including any reservation by the insurer of a right to change premiums. Such outline of coverage shall clearly state that it constitutes a summary of the policy issued or applied for and that the policy should be consulted to determine governing contractual provisions.

(c) Without limiting the generality of paragraph (b) of this subsection (5), no policy shall be offered for sale directly to consumers in this State as a qualified health plan, as defined in the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (Public Law 111-148), as amended by the federal Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (Public Law 111-152), and any amendments thereto, or regulations or guidance issued under those Acts (collectively, "the Federal Act"), unless the following information is made available to the consumer at the time he or she is comparing policies and their premiums:

(i) With respect to prescription drug benefits, an up-to-date formulary where a consumer can view in one location covered prescription drugs; information on tiering and the cost-sharing structure for each tier; and information about how a consumer can obtain specific copayment amounts or coinsurance percentages for a specific qualified health plan before enrolling in that plan. The formulary shall clearly identify the qualified health plan to which it applies.

(ii) The most recently published provider directory where a consumer can view the provider network that applies to each qualified health plan and information about each provider, including location, contact information, specialty, medical group, any institutional affiliation, and whether the provider is accepting new patients. The information shall clearly identify the qualified health plan to which it applies.

(d) Each company that offers a qualified health plan shall make the information in paragraph (c) of this subsection (5), for each qualified health plan that it offers, available and accessible to the general public on the company's Internet website and through other means for individuals without access to the Internet.

(e) The Department shall ensure that State-operated Internet websites, in addition to the Internet website for the health insurance marketplace established in this State in accordance with the Federal Act, prominently provide links to Internet-based materials and tools to help consumers be informed purchasers of health insurance.

(f) Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted or implemented in a manner not consistent with the Federal Act. This Section shall apply to all qualified health plans offered for sale to consumers for any coverage year beginning on or after January 1, 2015.

(6) Prior to the issuance of rules pursuant to this Section, the Director shall afford the public, including the companies affected thereby, reasonable opportunity for comment. Such rulemaking is subject to the provisions of the Illinois Administrative Procedure Act.

(7) When a rule has been adopted, pursuant to this Section, all policies of insurance or subscriber contracts which are not in compliance with such rule shall, when so provided in such rule, be deemed to be disapproved as of a date specified in such rule not less than 120 days following its effective date, without any further or additional notice other than the adoption of the rule.

(8) When a rule adopted pursuant to this Section so provides, a policy of insurance or subscriber contract which does not comply with the rule shall not less than 120 days from the effective date of such rule, be construed, and the insurer or service corporation shall be liable, as if the policy or contract did comply with the rule.

(9) Violation of any rule adopted pursuant to this Section shall be a violation of the insurance law for purposes of Sections 370 and 446 of the Insurance Code.

(Source: P.A. 90-177, eff. 7-23-97; 90-372, eff. 7-1-98; 90-655, eff. 7-30-98.)

Section 10. The Managed Care Reform and Patient Rights Act is amended by changing Section 15 and by adding Sections 45.1 and 45.2 as follows:

(215 ILCS 134/15)

Sec. 15. Provision of information.

(a) A health care plan shall provide annually to enrollees and prospective enrollees, upon request, a complete list of participating health care providers in the health care plan's service area and a description of the following terms of coverage:

(1) the service area;

[May 19, 2014]

- (2) the covered benefits and services with all exclusions, exceptions, and limitations;
- (3) the pre-certification and other utilization review procedures and requirements;
- (4) a description of the process for the selection of a primary care physician, any limitation on access to specialists, and the plan's standing referral policy;
- (5) the emergency coverage and benefits, including any restrictions on emergency care services;
- (6) the out-of-area coverage and benefits, if any;
- (7) the enrollee's financial responsibility for copayments, deductibles, premiums, and any other out-of-pocket expenses;
- (8) the provisions for continuity of treatment in the event a health care provider's participation terminates during the course of an enrollee's treatment by that provider;
- (9) the appeals process, forms, and time frames for health care services appeals, complaints, and external independent reviews, administrative complaints, and utilization review complaints, including a phone number to call to receive more information from the health care plan concerning the appeals process; and
- (10) a statement of all basic health care services and all specific benefits and services mandated to be provided to enrollees by any State law or administrative rule.

(a-5) Without limiting the generality of subsection (a) of this Section, no health care plan shall be offered for sale directly to consumers in this State as a qualified health plan, as defined in the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (Public Law 111-148), as amended by the federal Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (Public Law 111-152), and any amendments thereto, or regulations or guidance issued under those Acts (collectively, "the Federal Act"), unless, in addition to the information required under subsection (a) of this Section, the following information is available to the consumer at the time he or she is comparing health care plans and their premiums:

(1) With respect to prescription drug benefits, an up-to-date formulary where a consumer can view in one location covered prescription drugs; information on tiering and the cost-sharing structure for each tier; and information about how a consumer can obtain specific copayment amounts or coinsurance percentages for a specific qualified health plan before enrolling in that plan. The formulary shall clearly identify the qualified health plan to which it applies.

(2) The most recently published provider directory where a consumer can view the provider network that applies to each qualified health plan and information about each provider, including location, contact information, specialty, medical group, any institutional affiliation, and whether the provider is accepting new patients. The information shall clearly identify the qualified health plan to which it applies.

In the event of an inconsistency between any separate written disclosure statement and the enrollee contract or certificate, the terms of the enrollee contract or certificate shall control.

(b) Upon written request, a health care plan shall provide to enrollees a description of the financial relationships between the health care plan and any health care provider and, if requested, the percentage of copayments, deductibles, and total premiums spent on healthcare related expenses and the percentage of copayments, deductibles, and total premiums spent on other expenses, including administrative expenses, except that no health care plan shall be required to disclose specific provider reimbursement.

(c) A participating health care provider shall provide all of the following, where applicable, to enrollees upon request:

(1) Information related to the health care provider's educational background, experience, training, specialty, and board certification, if applicable.

(2) The names of licensed facilities on the provider panel where the health care provider presently has privileges for the treatment, illness, or procedure that is the subject of the request.

(3) Information regarding the health care provider's participation in continuing education programs and compliance with any licensure, certification, or registration requirements, if applicable.

(d) A health care plan shall provide the information required to be disclosed under this Act upon enrollment and annually thereafter in a legible and understandable format. The Department shall promulgate rules to establish the format based, to the extent practical, on the standards developed for supplemental insurance coverage under Title XVIII of the federal Social Security Act as a guide, so that a person can compare the attributes of the various health care plans.

(e) The written disclosure requirements of this Section may be met by disclosure to one enrollee in a household.

(f) Each issuer of a qualified health plan offered for sale to consumers in this State shall make the information described in subsection (a) of this Section, for each qualified health plan that it offers,

available and accessible to the general public on the company's Internet website and through other means for individuals without access to the Internet.

(g) The Department shall ensure that State-operated Internet websites, in addition to the Internet website for the health insurance marketplace established in this State in accordance with the Federal Act and its implementing regulations, prominently provide links to Internet-based materials and tools to help consumers be informed purchasers of health care plans.

(h) Nothing in this Section shall be interpreted or implemented in a manner not consistent with the Federal Act. This Section shall apply to all qualified health plans offered for sale to consumers for any coverage year beginning on or after January 1, 2015.

(Source: P.A. 91-617, eff. 1-1-00.)

(215 ILCS 134/45.1 new)

Sec. 45.1. Medical exceptions procedures required.

(a) Every health carrier that offers a qualified health plan, as defined in the federal Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010 (Public Law 111-148), as amended by the federal Health Care and Education Reconciliation Act of 2010 (Public Law 111-152), and any amendments thereto, or regulations or guidance issued under those Acts (collectively, "the Federal Act"), directly to consumers in this State shall establish and maintain a medical exceptions process that allows covered persons or their authorized representatives to request any clinically appropriate prescription drug when (1) the drug is not covered based on the health benefit plan's formulary; (2) the health benefit plan is discontinuing coverage of the drug on the plan's formulary for reasons other than safety or because the prescription drug has been withdrawn from the market by the drug's manufacturer; (3) the prescription drug alternatives required to be used in accordance with a step therapy requirement (A) has been ineffective in the treatment of the enrollee's disease or medical condition or, based on both sound clinical evidence and medical and scientific evidence, the known relevant physical or mental characteristics of the enrollee, and the known characteristics of the drug regimen, is likely to be ineffective or adversely affect the drug's effectiveness or patient compliance or (B) has caused or, based on sound medical evidence, is likely to cause an adverse reaction or harm to the enrollee; or (4) the number of doses available under a dose restriction for the prescription drug (A) has been ineffective in the treatment of the enrollee's disease or medical condition or (B) based on both sound clinical evidence and medical and scientific evidence, the known relevant physical and mental characteristics of the enrollee, and known characteristics of the drug regimen, is likely to be ineffective or adversely affect the drug's effective or patient compliance.

(b) The health carrier's established medical exceptions procedures must require, at a minimum, the following:

(1) Any request for approval of coverage made verbally or in writing (regardless of whether made using a paper or electronic form or some other writing) at any time shall be reviewed by appropriate health care professionals.

(2) The health carrier must, within 72 hours after receipt of a request made under subsection (a) of this Section, either approve or deny the request. In the case of a denial, the health carrier shall provide the covered person or the covered person's authorized representative and the covered person's prescribing provider with the reason for the denial, an alternative covered medication, if applicable, and information regarding the procedure for submitting an appeal to the denial.

(3) In the case of an expedited coverage determination, the health carrier must either approve or deny the request within 24 hours after receipt of the request. In the case of a denial, the health carrier shall provide the covered person or the covered person's authorized representative and the covered person's prescribing provider with the reason for the denial, an alternative covered medication, if applicable, and information regarding the procedure for submitting an appeal to the denial.

(c) Notwithstanding any other provision of this Section, nothing in this Section shall be interpreted or implemented in a manner not consistent with the Federal Act.

(215 ILCS 134/45.2 new)

Sec. 45.2. Prior authorization form; prescription benefits.

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, on and after January 1, 2015, a health insurer that provides prescription drug benefits must, within 72 hours after receipt of a paper or electronic prior authorization form from a prescribing provider or pharmacist, either approve or deny the prior authorization. In the case of a denial, the insurer shall provide the prescriber with the reason for the denial, an alternative covered medication, if applicable, and information regarding the denial.

In the case of an expedited coverage determination, the health insurer must either approve or deny the prior authorization within 24 hours after receipt of the paper or electronic prior authorization form. In the case of a denial, the health insurer shall provide the prescriber with the reason for the denial, an alternative

covered medication, if applicable, and information regarding the procedure for submitting an appeal to the denial.

(b) This Section does not apply to plans for beneficiaries of Medicare or Medicaid.

(c) For the purposes of this Section:

"Pharmacist" has the same meaning as set forth in the Pharmacy Practice Act.

"Prescribing provider" includes a provider authorized to write a prescription, as described in subsection (e) of Section 3 of the Pharmacy Practice Act, to treat a medical condition of an insured.

Section 99. Effective date. This Act takes effect upon becoming law."

Senate Floor Amendment No. 3 was held in the Committee on Assignments.

There being no further amendments, the bill, as amended, was ordered to a third reading.

READING BILLS FROM THE HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES A THIRD TIME

On motion of Senator Bush, **House Bill No. 3939** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 52; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Haine	Martinez	Rose
Barickman	Harmon	McCann	Sandoval
Bertino-Tarrant	Hastings	McCarter	Silverstein
Biss	Holmes	McConnaughay	Stadelman
Bivins	Hunter	McGuire	Steans
Brady	Jacobs	Morrison	Sullivan
Bush	Koehler	Mulroe	Syverson
Clayborne	Kotowski	Muñoz	Trotter
Collins	LaHood	Murphy	Van Pelt
Connelly	Landek	Oberweis	Mr. President
Cullerton, T.	Lightford	Radogno	
Cunningham	Link	Raoul	
Delgado	Luechtefeld	Rezin	
Frerichs	Manar	Righter	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Rose, **House Bill No. 4090** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 46; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Dillard	Luechtefeld	Rezin
Barickman	Frerichs	Manar	Righter
Bertino-Tarrant	Haine	Martinez	Rose

[May 19, 2014]

Biss	Hastings	McCann	Sandoval
Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Silverstein
Brady	Hunter	McGuire	Stadelman
Bush	Jacobs	Morrison	Steans
Clayborne	Koehler	Mulroe	Sullivan
Collins	Kotowski	Muñoz	Trotter
Connelly	LaHood	Murphy	Mr. President
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Oberweis	
Cunningham	Link	Radogno	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Martinez, **House Bill No. 4157** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 53; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Haine	Martinez	Righter
Barickman	Harmon	McCann	Rose
Bertino-Tarrant	Hastings	McCarter	Sandoval
Biss	Holmes	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bivins	Hunter	McGuire	Stadelman
Brady	Jacobs	Morrison	Steans
Bush	Koehler	Mulroe	Sullivan
Clayborne	Kotowski	Muñoz	Syverson
Collins	LaHood	Murphy	Trotter
Connelly	Landek	Noland	Van Pelt
Cullerton, T.	Lightford	Oberweis	Mr. President
Cunningham	Link	Radogno	
Dillard	Luechtefeld	Raoul	
Frerichs	Manar	Rezin	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Haine, **House Bill No. 4327** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 50; NAYS None; Present 2.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Radogno
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Raoul
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Rezin
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Righter

[May 19, 2014]

Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Brady	Hunter	McConnaughay	Sandoval
Bush	Jacobs	McGuire	Silverstein
Clayborne	Koehler	Morrison	Steans
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Trotter
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Murphy	Mr. President
Cunningham	Lightford	Noland	
Dillard	Link	Oberweis	

The following voted present:

Stadelman
Syverson

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Frerichs, **House Bill No. 4284** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 52; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Haine	Martinez	Righter
Barickman	Harmon	McCann	Rose
Bertino-Tarrant	Hastings	McCarter	Sandoval
Biss	Holmes	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bivins	Hunter	McGuire	Stadelman
Brady	Jacobs	Morrison	Steans
Bush	Koehler	Mulroe	Sullivan
Clayborne	Kotowski	Muñoz	Syverson
Collins	LaHood	Murphy	Trotter
Connelly	Landek	Noland	Mr. President
Cullerton, T.	Lightford	Oberweis	
Cunningham	Link	Radogno	
Dillard	Luechtefeld	Raoul	
Frerichs	Manar	Rezin	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Raoul, **House Bill No. 4636** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAY 1.

The following voted in the affirmative:

[May 19, 2014]

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Raoul
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Rezin
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Righter
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Rose
Bivins	Holmes	McConnaughay	Sandoval
Brady	Hunter	McGuire	Silverstein
Bush	Jacobs	Morrison	Stadelman
Clayborne	Koehler	Mulroe	Steans
Collins	Kotowski	Muñoz	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Murphy	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Noland	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Oberweis	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Radogno	

The following voted in the negative:

McCarter

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Morrison, **House Bill No. 4745** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Radogno
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Raoul
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Rezin
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Righter
Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Brady	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bush	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Clayborne	Koehler	Morrison	Steans
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Oberweis	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Steans, **House Bill No. 4783** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

[May 19, 2014]

YEAS 49; NAYS None; Present 1.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Haine	Martinez	Rezin
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	McCann	Righter
Biss	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Bivins	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Brady	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Bush	Koehler	Morrison	Steans
Clayborne	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Collins	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Connelly	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Cullerton, T.	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Cunningham	Link	Oberweis	
Dillard	Luechtefeld	Radogno	
Frerichs	Manar	Raoul	

The following voted present:

Barickman

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Connelly, **House Bill No. 4910** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 50; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Raoul
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Rezin
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	McCann	Righter
Biss	Hastings	McCarter	Rose
Bivins	Holmes	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Brady	Hunter	McGuire	Stadelman
Bush	Jacobs	Morrison	Steans
Clayborne	Koehler	Mulroe	Sullivan
Collins	Kotowski	Muñoz	Syverson
Connelly	LaHood	Murphy	Trotter
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Noland	Mr. President
Cunningham	Lightford	Oberweis	
Dillard	Link	Radogno	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Luechtefeld, **House Bill No. 4916** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

[May 19, 2014]

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Radogno
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Raoul
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Rezin
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Righter
Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Brady	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bush	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Clayborne	Koehler	Morrison	Steans
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Oberweis	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator LaHood, **House Bill No. 5085** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Radogno
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Raoul
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Rezin
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Righter
Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Brady	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bush	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Clayborne	Koehler	Morrison	Steans
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Oberweis	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Cunningham, **House Bill No. 5326** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

[May 19, 2014]

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Radogno
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Raoul
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Rezin
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Righter
Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Brady	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bush	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Clayborne	Koehler	Morrison	Stears
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Oberweis	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Koehler, **House Bill No. 5412** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 50; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Raoul
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Rezin
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Righter
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Rose
Bivins	Holmes	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Brady	Hunter	McGuire	Stadelman
Bush	Jacobs	Morrison	Stears
Clayborne	Koehler	Mulroe	Sullivan
Collins	Kotowski	Muñoz	Syverson
Connelly	LaHood	Murphy	Trotter
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Noland	Mr. President
Cunningham	Lightford	Oberweis	
Dillard	Link	Radogno	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Haine, **House Bill No. 5523** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

[May 19, 2014]

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 50; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Raoul
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Rezin
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Righter
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Rose
Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Silverstein
Brady	Hunter	McConnaughay	Stadelman
Bush	Jacobs	McGuire	Steans
Clayborne	Koehler	Morrison	Sullivan
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Syverson
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Trotter
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Noland	Mr. President
Cunningham	Lightford	Oberweis	
Dillard	Link	Radogno	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Biss, **House Bill No. 5785** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 48; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Haine	McCann	Righter
Barickman	Harmon	McCarter	Rose
Bertino-Tarrant	Holmes	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Biss	Hunter	McGuire	Stadelman
Bivins	Koehler	Morrison	Steans
Brady	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Bush	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Clayborne	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Collins	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Connelly	Link	Oberweis	
Cunningham	Luechtefeld	Radogno	
Dillard	Manar	Raoul	
Frerichs	Martinez	Rezin	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Connelly, **House Bill No. 5815** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

[May 19, 2014]

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 49; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Haine	Martinez	Rezin
Barickman	Harmon	McCann	Righter
Bertino-Tarrant	Hastings	McCarter	Rose
Biss	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bivins	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Brady	Koehler	Morrison	Stears
Bush	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Clayborne	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Collins	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Cullerton, T.	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Cunningham	Link	Oberweis	
Dillard	Luechtefeld	Radogno	
Frerichs	Manar	Raoul	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

Senator Connelly asked and obtained unanimous consent for the Journal to reflect his intention to have voted in the affirmative on **House Bill No. 5815**.

On motion of Senator Rose, **House Bill No. 5828** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Radogno
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Raoul
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Rezin
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Righter
Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Brady	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bush	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Clayborne	Koehler	Morrison	Stears
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Oberweis	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Althoff, **House Bill No. 5853** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Radogno
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Raoul
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Rezin
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Righter
Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Brady	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bush	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Clayborne	Koehler	Morrison	Stears
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Oberweis	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Hunter, **House Bill No. 5925** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, “Shall this bill pass?” it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Radogno
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Raoul
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Rezin
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Righter
Bivins	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Brady	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bush	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Clayborne	Koehler	Morrison	Stears
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Murphy	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Noland	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Oberweis	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

[May 19, 2014]

At the hour of 1:26 o'clock p.m., Senator Link, presiding.

On motion of Senator Silverstein, **House Bill No. 4525** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Manar	Raoul
Barickman	Haine	Martinez	Rezin
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	McCann	Righter
Biss	Holmes	McCarter	Rose
Bivins	Hunter	McConnaughay	Sandoval
Brady	Jacobs	McGuire	Silverstein
Bush	Koehler	Morrison	Stadelman
Clayborne	Kotowski	Mulroe	Steans
Collins	LaHood	Muñoz	Sullivan
Connelly	Landek	Murphy	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Lightford	Noland	Trotter
Cunningham	Link	Oberweis	Mr. President
Dillard	Luechtefeld	Radogno	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

At the hour of 1:29 o'clock p.m., Senator Silverstein, presiding.

On motion of Senator Sandoval, **House Bill No. 4395** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 51; NAYS None; Present 1.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Raoul
Barickman	Haine	Manar	Rezin
Bertino-Tarrant	Harmon	Martinez	Righter
Biss	Hastings	McCann	Rose
Bivins	Holmes	McConnaughay	Sandoval
Brady	Hunter	McGuire	Silverstein
Bush	Jacobs	Morrison	Stadelman
Clayborne	Koehler	Mulroe	Steans
Collins	Kotowski	Muñoz	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Murphy	Syverson
Cullerton, T.	Landek	Noland	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Oberweis	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Radogno	

[May 19, 2014]

The following voted present:

McCarter

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Sandoval, **House Bill No. 4462** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 52; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Haine	Martinez	Righter
Barickman	Harmon	McCann	Rose
Bertino-Tarrant	Hastings	McCarter	Sandoval
Biss	Holmes	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Bivins	Hunter	McGuire	Stadelman
Brady	Jacobs	Morrison	Steans
Bush	Koehler	Mulroe	Sullivan
Clayborne	Kotowski	Muñoz	Syverson
Collins	LaHood	Murphy	Trotter
Connelly	Landek	Noland	Mr. President
Cullerton, T.	Lightford	Oberweis	
Cunningham	Link	Radogno	
Dillard	Luechtefeld	Raoul	
Frerichs	Manar	Rezin	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

On motion of Senator Sandoval, **House Bill No. 5922** having been printed as received from the House of Representatives, together with all Senate Amendments adopted thereto, was taken up and read by title a third time.

And the question being, "Shall this bill pass?" it was decided in the affirmative by the following vote:

YEAS 50; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Haine	Manar	Rezin
Barickman	Harmon	Martinez	Righter
Bertino-Tarrant	Hastings	McCann	Rose
Biss	Holmes	McCarter	Sandoval
Bivins	Hunter	McConnaughay	Silverstein
Brady	Jacobs	McGuire	Stadelman
Bush	Koehler	Morrison	Steans
Collins	Kotowski	Mulroe	Sullivan
Connelly	LaHood	Muñoz	Syverson

[May 19, 2014]

Cullerton, T.	Landek	Noland	Trotter
Cunningham	Lightford	Oberweis	Mr. President
Dillard	Link	Radogno	
Frerichs	Luechtefeld	Raoul	

This bill, having received the vote of a constitutional majority of the members elected, was declared passed, and all amendments not adopted were tabled pursuant to Senate Rule No. 5-4(a).

Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof and ask their concurrence in the Senate Amendment adopted thereto.

At the hour of 1:36 o'clock p.m., the Chair announced that the Senate stand at ease.

AT EASE

At the hour of 1:53 o'clock p.m., the Senate resumed consideration of business.
Senator Silverstein, presiding.

REPORT FROM COMMITTEE ON ASSIGNMENTS

Senator Clayborne, Chairperson of the Committee on Assignments, during its May 19, 2014 meeting, reported the following Legislative Measures have been assigned to the indicated Standing Committees of the Senate:

Criminal Law: Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 3744; Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 4781.

Education: Senate Committee Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 1152; Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 3232; Senate Committee Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 3662; Senate Committee Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 3937; Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 5397; Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 5707.

Energy: Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to Senate Joint Resolution 73.

Executive: Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 4442; Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 5622; Senate Floor Amendment No. 3 to House Bill 5701.

Human Services: Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 671.

Insurance: Senate Floor Amendment No. 3 to House Bill 3638.

Judiciary: Senate Committee Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 4561; Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 4956.

Local Government: Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 4811; Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 4811; Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 4983.

Public Health: Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 5354; Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 5410; Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 5689.

Transportation: Senate Floor Amendment No. 7 to Senate Joint Resolution 62; Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to Senate Bill 2015; Senate Floor Amendment No. 3 to Senate Bill 2015; Senate Floor Amendment No. 4 to Senate Bill 2015.

Senator Clayborne, Chairperson of the Committee on Assignments, during its May 19, 2014 meeting, reported the following Resolutions have been assigned to the indicated Standing Committee of the Senate:

[May 19, 2014]

State Government and Veterans Affairs: **Senate Resolutions Numbered 1172, 1173 and 1183; Senate Joint Resolutions Numbered 74 and 76; House Joint Resolutions Numbered 77 and 89.**

Senator Clayborne, Chairperson of the Committee on Assignments, during its May 19, 2014 meeting, to which was referred **House Bills numbered 1022 and 4021**, reported the same back with the recommendation that the bills be placed on the order of second reading without recommendation to committee.

Senator Clayborne, Chairperson of the Committee on Assignments, during its May 19, 2014 meeting, reported that pursuant to Senate Rule 3-8(b-1), the following amendments will remain in the Senate Committee on Assignments:

Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 1457, Senate Floor Amendment No. 2 to House Bill 2213, Senate Floor Amendment No. 3 to House Bill 4056, Senate Floor Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 4486 and Senate Committee Amendment No. 1 to House Bill 5311.

COMMITTEE MEETING ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chair announced the following committee to meet at 3:00 o'clock p.m.:

Transportation in Room 212

The Chair announced the following committee to meet at 3:30 o'clock p.m.:

Energy in Room 212

COMMITTEE MEETING ANNOUNCEMENT FOR MAY 20, 2014

The Chair announced the following committee to meet at 9:00 o'clock a.m.:

Public Health in Room 409

CONSIDERATION OF RESOLUTIONS ON SECRETARY'S DESK

Senator Sandoval moved that **Senate Resolution No. 639**, on the Secretary's Desk, be taken up for immediate consideration.

The motion prevailed.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on Transportation, adopted and ordered printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 2 TO SENATE RESOLUTION 639

AMENDMENT NO. 2. Amend Senate Resolution 639 by replacing everything after the heading with the following:

"WHEREAS, The Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning is currently updating its GOTO2040 master plan as part of a federally-required mid-decade update; and

WHEREAS, A new initiative for first-class passenger rail service called Crossrail Chicago has emerged which would, for the first time, connect Metra route lines together, knitting together the Chicagoland region; and

[May 19, 2014]

WHEREAS, Crossrail Chicago would allow for downstate Amtrak service to connect directly with O'Hare International Airport; and

WHEREAS, Metra currently runs 11 separate lines, each of which terminates in downtown Chicago; these lines do not travel through downtown Chicago, which would be far more efficient; and

WHEREAS, Union Station has 2 tracks that travel through the station that are not currently used, but could be used for Metra or Amtrak service; and

WHEREAS, Northeast Illinois has long suffered from a jobs-housing mismatch, where tens of thousands of entry-level jobs in and around O'Hare airport and the northwest suburbs struggle to be filled, while tens of thousands of residents of the south side and south suburbs struggle to find employment; and

WHEREAS, Current public transportation between the south suburbs and the south side of Chicago and the northwest suburbs is a long, laborious journey involving transfers between buses and rail, creating a greater barrier to full employment in the region; and

WHEREAS, This initiative is consistent with the long-term vision for northeastern Illinois set forth by the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning; and

WHEREAS, Crossrail Chicago could connect Rockford, Elgin, Hoffman Estates, Schaumburg, Arlington Heights, and O'Hare through Union Station to McCormick Place, Hyde Park, Homewood, University Park, the south suburban airport, Kankakee, and Champaign-Urbana in one electrified track; and

WHEREAS, There is an opportunity to build a new train station at O'Hare Airport as part of the consolidated rental car facility currently out for bid that can connect to the extended people-mover and existing Metra service on the North Central District line; and

WHEREAS, The new electrified line of Crossrail Chicago would be located largely on publicly-owned rights-of-way and could bring tremendous economic benefits to the region and State; and

WHEREAS, Crossrail Chicago would allow for a direct train ride between O'Hare Airport and McCormick Place, the continent's largest convention facility; and

WHEREAS, Metra service along the Metra Electric line from University Park to McCormick Place could be significantly improved through the Crossrail Chicago initiative; and

WHEREAS, Using existing elevated tracks along 16th Street could connect Metra Electric tracks, Metra Rock Island tracks, and Union Station; and

WHEREAS, Crossrail Chicago can also serve as the trunk of a Midwest high-speed rail network, which would bring millions of people together into one stronger economic unit; therefore, be it

RESOLVED, BY THE SENATE OF THE NINETY-EIGHTH GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS, that we urge the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning to include Crossrail Chicago in its list of fiscally unconstrained projects as consistent with the GOTO2040 vision; and be it further

RESOLVED, That we urge the Illinois Department of Transportation, Metra, the Chicago Transit Authority, and the Chicago Department of Aviation to support the inclusion of Crossrail Chicago as part of GOTO2040's mid-decade update as a project on the fiscally unconstrained list as consistent with the long-term plans of those agencies; and be it further

RESOLVED, That suitable copies of this resolution be delivered to the Chicago Metropolitan Agency for Planning, the Illinois Department of Transportation, Metra, the Chicago Transit Authority, and the Chicago Department of Aviation."

Senator Sandoval moved that Senate Resolution No. 639, as amended, be adopted.

[May 19, 2014]

The motion prevailed.
And the resolution was adopted.

Senator Hunter moved that **Senate Resolution No. 1070**, on the Secretary's Desk, be taken up for immediate consideration.

The motion prevailed.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on State Government and Veterans Affairs, adopted and ordered printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE RESOLUTION 1070

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Resolution 1070 as follows:

on page 1, line 7, by replacing "campaigns" with "public education campaigns".

Senator Hunter moved that Senate Resolution No. 1070, as amended, be adopted.

And on that motion a call of the roll was had resulting as follows:

YEAS 49; NAYS None.

The following voted in the affirmative:

Althoff	Harmon	Martinez	Rezin
Barickman	Harris	McCann	Rose
Bertino-Tarrant	Hastings	McCarter	Sandoval
Biss	Holmes	McConaughay	Silverstein
Brady	Hunter	McGuire	Stadelman
Bush	Jacobs	Morrison	Steans
Clayborne	Koehler	Mulroe	Sullivan
Collins	Kotowski	Muñoz	Syverson
Connelly	LaHood	Murphy	Trotter
Cunningham	Landek	Noland	Mr. President
Dillard	Lightford	Oberweis	
Frerichs	Link	Radogno	
Haine	Manar	Raoul	

The motion prevailed.
And the resolution, as amended, was adopted.

Senator Rezin moved that **Senate Resolution No. 1088**, on the Secretary's Desk, be taken up for immediate consideration.

The motion prevailed.

The following amendment was offered in the Committee on State Government and Veterans Affairs, adopted and ordered printed:

AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO SENATE RESOLUTION 1088

AMENDMENT NO. 1. Amend Senate Resolution 1088 as follows:

on page 1, line 13, by replacing "Hati" with "Haiti".

Senator Rezin moved that Senate Resolution No. 1088, as amended, be adopted.

The motion prevailed.

And the resolution was adopted.

Senator Althoff moved that **Senate Resolution No. 1114**, on the Secretary's Desk, be taken up for immediate consideration.

The motion prevailed.

Senator Althoff moved that Senate Resolution No. 1114 be adopted.

[May 19, 2014]

The motion prevailed.
And the resolution was adopted.

Senator Oberweis moved that **Senate Resolution No. 1145**, on the Secretary's Desk, be taken up for immediate consideration.

The motion prevailed.
Senator Oberweis moved that Senate Resolution No. 1145 be adopted.
The motion prevailed.
And the resolution was adopted.

Senator Holmes moved that **House Joint Resolution No. 56**, on the Secretary's Desk, be taken up for immediate consideration.

The motion prevailed.
Senator Holmes moved that House Joint Resolution No. 56 be adopted.
The motion prevailed.
And the resolution was adopted.
Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof.

Senator Biss moved that **House Joint Resolution No. 68**, on the Secretary's Desk, be taken up for immediate consideration.

The motion prevailed.
Senator Biss moved that House Joint Resolution No. 68 be adopted.
The motion prevailed.
And the resolution was adopted.
Ordered that the Secretary inform the House of Representatives thereof.

At the hour of 2:08 o'clock p.m., the Chair announced the Senate stand adjourned until Tuesday, May 20, 2014, at 11:00 o'clock a.m.